






























































B Canwry Poper & Boord hile Lirmied

MOTES:

The share trangher Dooks of the Comgany will remain closed from Septemiter 22, 2016 b Septemar
28, 2016 [both deys nclusive), Trandsers recanad in onder by the Shares Registrar of the Company, Mes.
FAMCO Associates (Private) Limited, 8-F, Neot to Hotal Faran, Nursany, Block-8, PE.C H.5., Shahra-e-
Fasai, Farachi upio the close of business on September 21, 2006 will De trested in Sme o the punpose
of attandance at the Annual General Meeting.

A mermber, who has daposited hiser shanes into Cemral Depoaitony Company of Pakistan Limiled,
must bring hisher participant’s ID number and COC account'sub-account number along with ariginal
Computerized Mational iderity Card (CMIC) or ongingl Pasaport at the Sme of attending the mesting.

A mamber entitiad 10 attend and vobe at the Annusl General Mesting mary appoint ancther mamber as
hesher prooy' 10 attend, speak and vole instaad of hemvher,

Foarms of prosy, in onés b3 De valid must be properdy Tlead-in‘eeacuied and mosved at e rmgisbanad
office of the Company Stusted at Lakson Squar. Bulding MNo.2, Sarwar Shaheed Poad, Karachi ot
laier fhaan 48 hous balons the Bme of the maeting.

Members are requested o promptly notify Share Registrar of the Company of any change in their
addressas,

Mambers who have not yet submitted photocopy of their Computenizesd Mationsl identity Cand [OMNIC)
ang requasied 10 send e same 10 our Shane Ragstnar at the earliest.

Pursuant 1o Notification vide SRO.7BT(1V2014 of September 08, 2014, Securities and Exchange
Commigsion of Pakistan (SECF) has direcied 10 {aciitate the members of the Company recehing Annual
Financial Stetermeants and Motices through elecionc mail Systerm (g-mdl). YWe ane pleasad 10 offer this
facsiity 10 our mambars who deging 10 reoana Annual Fnancial Stetements and Notices of the Compary
throwgh e-mail in future. In this respect members are heraby requestad o comey their consent via
& on 4 standird requast form which is avaliable at the Company websie Le. www.CenturyDaper.
com.pk. Pieass ensure that your e-mai has sullicient rights and space availabile to receia such &-mai
which may be larger than 1 MB fil in size. Further, | is the responsitilty of the member ko timely update
the: Shase Registrér of any change In the ragistared &-mall addess.

Members can aiso avail video conference facilty. in this mpgand. piease fil the following and subemit
o registenad address of the Compary 10 deags Daloee holding of fhe Anmual Ganensd Mesting. I the
Company receves consent fram menbeans holding in apgragate 10% of mone sharehalkdng residing at
& geodraniecal IDeaton, D parbcitabs in the mesting thnaugh vided condanancs at Bast 10 days phoe i
date o the maeting. the Compary wil arangs video conference [aXlEy in the city subject o Supilabilty
of such lacility in that ciby.

"I, of being & member of Century Paper & Boand Mils
Limited, holderof __________ ordinary shara(sl as per Reggtenad Foiio No. ______ hereby opt for video
confenance faciity & "

Farm of Prosy i enciosed.




































































































































E  Cenwry Poper & Beard Ml Limied
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The Boand has also constitubed & Hurman Resource and Remuneration Committes comprising of two
NoN-exBCutive difectors and one exeditve dirctor. The chainman of the Committes is & Non-executive
clisecinr,

The Board has sst up an eflective internal udit function which is headad by & chartered acoountant.
T full time stafls am Qualiied and experiancad for the purpase, and comensant with tha policaes and
procaduras of the Company.

The statutory auditors of the Compeny hane corfrmed that they have been givan a satistaciory raling
uncler fhe Cuality Conbrol Fenview Program of the institube of Chirtered Accourtants of Pakisian, that
they ar any of the partners of the Snn, ther Spouses and mingr childran do not hold shares of e
Company, and fhat the frm and al ks pariners am in compliancs with Intemnafional Faderation of
Acoourtants (FAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopled Dy the ineSiute of Charered Accourtants
af Pakistan.

The stalubory audiices or e persons associsted with hem have not Been appoined 1o Crovide any
othier Services excepit in ACoordance with the isting moulitions. The aurtors have confrmed that Sey
have obasrwad IFAC guitkeines in this rgard.

The Company announces the "ciossd panod” prior 10 the announcemant of inkeimdingl resiRs, and
businass decmions, whoh may matedaly affect the marked pace of the compam’s Sacurities and
immediately inmates the cosed pericd to DirectorsExacutives and the Stock Exchange.

Materidl and senstve information hes bean dissamnated &t once among & market pamcipants
through the Stock Exchange.

it & confirmad that mabens prnciples containgd In the Code of Conpdrala Goverrancs have bean
complied win.

4z

Afeaks Alvmad
Direcior and Chial Execufive OMcer

Karache August 17, 2018
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Balance Sheet
as at June 30, 2016

ASSETS
NON CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment
Operating fixed assets
Capital work in progress

Intangible assets
Long-term loans and advances
Long-term deposits

CURRENT ASSETS
Stores and spares
Stock-in-trade
Trade debts
Loans and advances
Trade deposits and short-term prepayments
Other receivables
Tax refunds due from Government
Taxation - net
Cash and bank balances

TOTAL ASSETS

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Authorized share capital
410,000,000 (2015: 410,000,000) shares of Rs. 10 each
Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital
Ordinary shares
Preference shares

Reserves

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Long-term financing
Deferred taxation

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables
Interest and mark-up accrued
Short-term borrowings
Current portion of long-term financing

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Note

D O

o ~

10
11
12
13
14

15
16

17
18

19

20
21

22
23
24
20

25

2016 2015
(Rupees in thousands)
10,037,714 7,602,231

49,037 1,812,177
10,086,751 9,414,408
2,390 3,645

882 5,054

2,829 2,829
10,092,852 9,425,936
1,136,597 1,082,473
1,731,864 1,982,334
1,265,432 1,173,624
15,199 16,156
79,533 3,679
4,336 2,815
127,604 116,306
309,838 183,318
217,494 120,987
4,887,897 4,681,692
14,980,749 14,107,628
4,100,000 4,100,000
1,470,184 1,470,184
901,214 901,214
2,371,398 2,371,398
3,479,168 3,147,348
5,850,566 5,618,746
3,878,066 4,149,238
695,234 578,499
4,573,300 4,727,737
1,580,938 1,245,364
41,330 42,399
1,988,443 1,951,943
946,172 621,439
4,556,883 3,861,145
14,980,749 14,107,628

The annexed notes from 1 to 47 form an integral part of these financial statements.

o

Aftab Ahmad
Chief Executive Officer

-—

~

Tasleemuddin Ahmed Batlay

Director




Profit and Loss Account
for the year ended June 30, 2016

Sales - net

Cost of sales

Gross profit

General and administrative expenses
Selling and distribution expenses
Other operating charges

Other income

Operating profit

Finance cost

Net profit / (loss) before taxation
Taxation

Net profit / (loss) for the year

Earnings / (loss) per share - basic and diluted (Rupees)

Note

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

Appropriations have been reflected in the statement of changes in equity.

2016

2015

(Rupees in thousands)

13,389,130

(12,121,851)

13,186,182

(12,308,379)

1,267,279 877,803
(379,336) (359,045)
(113,871) (113,049)

(46,081) (74,601)
64,136 68,442
792,127 399,550
(355,751) (575,987)
436,376 (176,437)
(113,985) (28,961)
322,391 (205,398)
1.76 (1.89)

The annexed notes from 1 to 47 form an integral part of these financial statements.

o

Aftab Ahmad
Chief Executive Officer

-—

Director

Tasleemuddin Ahmed Batlay
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Century Paper & Board Mills Limited
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Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended June 30, 2016

2016

2015

Note (Rupees in thousands)

Net profit / (loss) for the year 322,391 (205,398)
Other comprehensive income for the year
ltems that will not be reclassified to profit and loss account
Gain / (loss) on remeasurement of defined benefit liability 13,470 (29,351)
Tax impact (4,041) 8,805
35 9,429 (20,546)
Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the year 331,820 (225,944)
The annexed notes from 1 to 47 form an integral part of these financial statements.
Aftab Ahmad Tasleemuddin Ahmed Batlay

Chief Executive Officer Director




Cash Flow Statement
for the year ended June 30, 2016

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash generated from operations
Finance cost paid
Taxes paid
Taxes refunded
Gratuity paid
Workers’ Profit Participation Fund paid
Long-term loans and advances - net
Net cash generated from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Fixed capital expenditure
Proceeds from sale of operating fixed assets
Net cash used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from long-term financing from banking companies
Repayment of long-term financing from banking companies

Net cash generated from financing activities

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Effect of exchange loss
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances
Short-term borrowings

Note

37

16
24

2016

2015

(Rupees in thousands)

2,065,690 1,813,089
(356,820) (599,066)
(232,390) (287,790)

93,280 120,291
(38,245) (33,734)
- (49,087)
4,172 (2,209)
1,535,687 961,494
(1,533,570)| | (1,905,514)
4,543 8,281

(1,529,027)  (1,897,233)
675,000 | | 1,434,844
(621,439) (794,015)

53,561 640,829
60,221 (294,910)
(1,830,956)  (1,536,046)
214) -

(1,770,949)  (1,830,956)
217,494 120,987

(1,988,443)  (1,951,943)

(1,770,949) (1,830,956

The annexed notes from 1 to 47 form an integral part of these financial statements.

o

Aftab Ahmad
Chief Executive Officer

-—

Director

Tasleemuddin Ahmed Batlay
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Statement of Changes In Equity

for the year ended June 30, 2016

Balance as at July 01, 2014

Total comprehensive income for the year

Net loss for the year

Loss on remeasurement of defined benefit liability - net

Balance as at June 30, 2015

Total comprehensive income for the year

Net profit for the year

Gain on remeasurement of defined benefit liability - net

Balance as at June 30, 2016

Issued, subscribed Resenes
and paid-up Capital reserves Revenue reserves
Total
) ‘ ) Sub total
Ordinary share | Preference share| ~ Share Merger [Redemption Total General [Unappropriated Total
capital capital premium | reserve | reserve reserve profit
(Rupees in thousands)
1,470,184 901,214 1,822,122 7,925 931,254 2,761,301 313226 298,765 611,991 3,373,292 5,744,690
- (205,398) ((205,398) | (205,398) | (205,398)
- (20,546) | (20,546) | (20,546) (20,546)
(225,944) (225,944) (225,944)  (225,944)
1,470,184 901,214 1822122 7,925 931,254 2,761,301 313226 72,821 386,047 3,147,348 5,518,746
322,391 | 322,391 | 322,391 322,391
9,429 9,429 9,429 9,429
- - 331,820 331,820 331,820 331,820
1,470,184 901,214 1,822,122 7,925 931,254 2,761,301 313,226 404,641 717,867 3,479,168 5,850,566
The annexed notes from 1 to 47 form an integral part of these financial statements.
—

Aftab Ahmad

Chief Executive Officer

Tasleemuddin Ahmed Batlay

Director




Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended June 30, 2016

1

2.1

2.2

2.3

3.1

STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

Century Paper & Board Mills Limited (“the Company”) was incorporated in Pakistan as a public limited
company on August 2, 1984 under the Companies Ordinance, 1984 and its ordinary shares were
quoted on Karachi, Lahore and Islamabad Stock Exchanges of Pakistan all of which merged into
Pakistan Stock Exchange with effect from January 11, 2016. The registered office of the Company is
situated at Lakson Square Building No. 2, Sarwar Shaheed Road, Karachi, Pakistan. The Company
is engaged in manufacturing and marketing of paper, board and related products.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with approved accounting standards
as applicable in Pakistan. Approved accounting standards comprise of such International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board as are notified
under the Companies Ordinance, 1984 and provisions of and directives issued under the Companies
Ordinance, 1984. In case requirements differ, the provisions or directives of the Companies Ordinance,
1984 shall prevail.

Basis of measurement

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for
recognition of certain staff retirement benefits at present value.

These financial statements have been prepared following accrual basis of accounting except for
cash flow information.

The preparation of these financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards
requires the management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the Company’s
accounting policies and use of certain critical accounting estimates. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgment, critical accounting estimates and significant assumptions are disclosed in note
4.25.

Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Pak Rupees, which is the Company’s functional and
presentation currency.

NEW STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND AMENDMENTS TO PUBLISHED APPROVED
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

Standards or interpretations that are effective in current year but not relevant to the Company

The following new standards have been issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
(IASB) which have been adopted locally by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan
vide SRO 633(1)/2014 dated July 10, 2014 with effect from following dates. The Company has
adopted these accounting standards which do not have significant impact on the Company’s financial
statements other than certain disclosure requirements about fair value of financial instruments as per
IFRS 13 “Fair Value Measurement” which have been disclosed in note 42.

Annual Report 2016
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended June 30, 2016

Effective date (annual
periods beginning on
or after)

IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements

IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements

IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

IAS 27  Separate Financial Statements (Revised 2011)

IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures (Revised 2011)

January 01, 2015
January 01, 2015
January 01, 2015
January 01, 2015
January 01, 2015
January 01, 2015

3.2 Amendments not yet effective

The following amendments and interpretations with respect to the approved accounting standards
as applicable in Pakistan would be effective from the dates mentioned below against the respective
standard or interpretation:

Effective date (annual
periods beginning on

Century Paper & Board Mills Limited

~J
N

Accounting standards and interpretations:

IFRS 2

IFRS 5

IFRS 7

IFRS 9

IFRS 10

IFRS 11

IFRS 12

IFRS 14

IFRS 15

Share-based Payments - Amendment to clarify the classification and
measurement of share-based payment transactions

Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations -
Amendments resulting from September 2014 Annual Improvements
to IFRSs

Financial Instruments: Disclosures - Amendments resulting from
September 2014 Annual Improvements to IFRSs (Servicing Contracts
and Applicability of the offsetting amendments in condensed interim
financial statements)

Financial Instruments - Amendments for incorporating requirements
for classification and measurement, impairment, general hedge
accounting and derecognition

Consolidated Financial Statements - Amendments
application of the consolidation exception

regarding the

Joint Arrangements - Amendments regarding the accounting for
acquisitions of an interest in a joint operation

Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities - Amendments regarding the
application of the consolidation exception

Regulatory Deferral Accounts, To recognize Regulatory Deferred
Accounts balances arise from rate-regulated activities

Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Superseded IAS 11), To
recognize revenue for the transfer of promised goods or services to
the customer under the contract

or after)

January 01,2018

January 01,2016

January 01, 2016

January 01, 2018

January 01, 2016

January 01, 2016

January 01, 2016

January 01, 2016

January 01, 2018



Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended June 30, 2016

IFRS 16 Leases (Superseding IAS 17), To report all lease assets and lease
liabilities on the balance sheet, initially measured at the present value
of future lease payments as it eliminated classification of leases as
Operating or Finance Leases for lessee January 01, 2019

IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements - Amendments resulting from
the disclosure initiative January 01, 2016

IAS7  Statement of Cash Flows - Amendments resulting from the disclosure
initiative January 01, 2017

IAS 12 Income Taxes - Amendment regarding the recognition of deferred
tax assets for unrealized losses January 01, 2017

IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment - Amendments regarding the
clarification of acceptable methods of depreciation and bringing
bearer plants into the scope of IAS 16 January 01, 2016

IAS 19 Employee Benefits - Amendments resulting from September 2014
Annual Improvements to IFRSs January 01, 2016

IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements - Amendment
reinstating the equity method as an accounting option for investments
in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associated in an entity separate
financial statements January 01, 2016

IAS 28 Investment in Associates and Joint Ventures - Amendment regarding
the application of consolidation exception January 01, 2016

IAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting - Amendments resulting from September
2014 Annual Improvements to IFRSs January 01, 2016

IAS 38 Intangible Assets - Amendments regarding the clarification of
acceptable methods of amortisation January 01, 2016

IAS 41 Agriculture - Amendments bringing bearer plant into the scope of
IAS 16 January 01, 2016

3.3 Standards or interpretations not yet effective

The following new standards and interpretations have been issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB), which have not been adopted locally by the Securities and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan:

IFRS 1 First Time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

IFRS 16 Leases

The effects of IFRS 15 - Revenues from Contracts with Customers and IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments

are still being assessed, as these new standards may have significant effect on the Company’s future
financial statements.

The management anticipates that the adoption of the above standards and amendments in future
periods will have no material impact on the Company’s financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended June 30, 2016

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the presentation of these financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

4.1 Property, plant and equipment
a) Operating fixed assets

These are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any,
except for freehold land which is stated at cost. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the item including borrowing costs (refer note 4.9). The cost of
self constructed assets includes the cost of materials, direct labor and any other costs directly
attributable to bringing the asset to a working condition for its intended use. Purchased software
that is integral to the functionality of the related equipment is capitalized as part of that equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in an asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The cost of the day to
day servicing of property, plant and equipment are recognized in profit and loss account during the
financial year in which they are incurred.

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted
for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

The spare parts, stand-by equipment and servicing equipment are capitalized as an asset when they
meet the definition of property, plant and equipment.

Depreciation on operating fixed assets other than land is provided on a straight line basis. Full month’s
depreciation is charged on addition, while no depreciation is charged in the month of disposal or
deletion of assets. Rates of depreciation, which are disclosed in note 5, are determined to allocate
the cost of an asset less estimated residual value, if not insignificant, over its useful life.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed at each financial year end, and adjusted if
impact on depreciation is significant.

Disposal of assets is recognized when significant risks and rewards incidental to the ownership
have been transferred to buyers. Gains and losses on disposal are determined by comparing the
proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognized in the profit and loss account.

b) Capital work-in-progress

Capital work-in-progress are stated at cost and consists of expenditure incurred, advances made
and other costs directly attributable to operating fixed assets in the course of their construction and
installation. Cost also includes applicable borrowing costs. Transfers are made to relevant operating
fixed assets category as and when assets are available for use intended by the management.

4.2 Intangible assets

These are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment losses, if any. Major computer
software licenses are capitalized on the basis of cost incurred to acquire and bring to use the specific
software.

Expenditure which enhances the performance of computer software beyond its original specification
and useful life is recognized as a capital improvement and added to the original cost of the software.



Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended June 30, 2016

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

Amortization is provided on a straight line basis at the rates disclosed in note 7 to the financial
statements. Amortization on addition to intangible assets is charged from the month of addition while
no amortization is charged for the month of disposal or deletion of assets.

Costs associated with maintaining computer softwares are recognized as an expense as and when
incurred.

Impairment

The carrying amount of the Company’s assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine
whether there is any indication of impairment. If such indications exist, the assets’ recoverable
amounts are estimated in order to determine the extent of impairment loss, if any.

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit
exceeds its recoverable amount. A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable asset group that
generates cash flows that is largely independent from other assets and group. Impairment losses
are recognized as expense in profit and loss account. The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. Where an impairment loss is recognized, the
depreciation charge is adjusted in the future periods to allocate the asset’s revised carrying amount
over its estimated useful life.

Impaired assets are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each balance sheet date.
Reversal of the impairment losses are restricted to the extent that asset’s carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, if no impairment
losses had been recognized. A reversal of impairment loss is recognized in the profit and loss account.

Stores and spares

Stores and spares are stated at cost less provision for slow moving and obsolete items. Cost is
determined by using the moving average method. Items in transit are valued at cost comprising
invoice value plus other charges incurred thereon.

Stock-in-trade

Stock-in-trade are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost of raw material is
determined by using the monthly weighted average method.

Stock-in-transit is valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges incurred thereon.
Work-in-process and finished goods consist of the direct materials costs, fuel and power cost and
an appropriate proportion of manufacturing overheads including labour cost, depreciation and

maintenance etc.

Net realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated cost of completion and costs necessary to be incurred in order to make the sale.

Trade debts and other receivables

Trade debts and other receivables are recognized and carried at original invoiced amount. When
a trade debt is uncollectible, it is written off and charge to profit and loss account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited to the profit and loss account.

Annual Report 2016
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended June 30, 2016

4.7

4.8

4.9

Taxation

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized in profit
and loss account, except to the extent that it relates to items recognized in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case it is also recognized in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity respectively.

Current

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year determined in accordance
with the prevailing law for taxation of income. The charge for current tax is calculated using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date after taking into account tax credits and
tax rebates. The charge for current tax also includes adjustments, where considered necessary, to
provision for tax made in previous years arising from assessments framed during the year for such
years.

Deferred

Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method on all temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
amounts used for taxation purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred
tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available in
future years to utilize deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and tax credits.

Deferred tax is calculated based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted up
to the balance sheet date and are expected to apply to the periods when the differences reverse.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same
taxable entity, or on different taxable entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets
on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realized simultaneously.

The Company takes into account decisions taken by the taxation authorities. For instance where
the Company’s view differs from the income tax department at the assessment stage, the disputed
amounts are shown as contingent liabilities.

Cash and bank balances
Cash in hand and at banks are carried at nominal amount.
Borrowings

Loans and borrowings are recorded at the proceeds received. Finance cost are accounted for on
accrual basis and are shown as interest and mark-up accrued to the extent of the amount remaining
unpaid.

Short-term borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has unconditional right
to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the balance sheet date.

Borrowing cost on long-term finances and short-term borrowings which are obtained for the
acquisition of qualifying assets are capitalized as part of cost of that asset. All other borrowing costs
are charged to profit and loss account in the period in which these are incurred. Borrowing cost also
includes exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent that they are
regarded as an adjustment to interest cost as allowed under IAS 23 “Borrowing cost”.



Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended June 30, 2016

4.10

411

412

413

4131

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are obligations to pay for goods and services that have been acquired in
the ordinary course of business from suppliers. Accounts payable are classified as current liabilities if
payment is due within one year. If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Liabilities for trade and other amounts payable are carried at cost which is the fair value of the
consideration to be paid in the future for goods and services received, whether or not billed to the
Company.

Provisions

A provision is recognized in the balance sheet when the Company has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and amount of that obligation can be measured
reliably. Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect current best
estimates.

Contingencies

A contingent liability is disclosed when the Company has a possible obligation as a result of past
events, existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company; or the Company has a
present legal or constructive obligation that arises from past events, but it is not probable that an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, or the
amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

Financial instruments
Financial assets

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following categories: at fair value through profit or
loss, loans and receivables, held to maturity and available for sale. The classification depends on the
purpose for which the financial assets were acquired. Management determines the classification of
its financial assets at initial recognition. All the financial assets of the Company as at balance sheet
date are carried as loans and receivables.

- Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an active market. These are included in current assets, except for maturities
greater than 12 months after the balance sheet, which are classified as non-current assets. The
Company’s loans and receivables comprise ‘trade debts’, ‘loans and deposits’, ‘other receivables’
and ‘cash and cash equivalents’ in the balance sheet.

- Impairment

At the end of each reporting period the Company assesses whether there is an objective evidence
that a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred only if there is objective evidence
of impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the
asset (a “loss event”) and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash
flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.
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4.13.3

413.4

414

4.15

4.16

417

4171

If in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the previously
recognized impairment loss will be reversed either directly or by adjusting provision account.

Financial liabilities

Allfinancial liabilities are recognized at the time when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Recognition and measurement

Allfinancial assets and liabilities are initially measured at cost, which is the fair value of the consideration
given and received respectively. These financial assets and liabilities are subsequently measured
at fair value, amortized cost or cost, as the case may be. The particular measurement methods
adopted are disclosed in the individual policy statements associated with each item.

Derecognition

The financial assets are de-recognized when the Company loses control of the contractual rights that
comprise the financial assets. The financial liabilities are de-recognized when they are extinguished
i.e. when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired.

Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial asset and financial liability are offset and the net amount is reported in the financial
statements only when the Company has a legally enforceable right to set-off the recognized amounts
and the Company intends to settle either on a net basis or realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments

The Company enters into derivative financial instruments. The derivatives that do not qualify for
hedge accounting are recognized in the balance sheet at fair value with corresponding effect in profit
and loss account.

Foreign currency translation

Transactions in foreign currencies are converted into functional currency (PKR) at the rates of
exchange prevailing on the dates of transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies
are translated into functional currency at the rates of exchange prevailing at the balance sheet date.
Exchange gains and losses are recognized in the profit and loss account.

Employees benefits

The Company’s employees benefits comprise of provident fund, gratuity scheme and compensated
absences for eligible employees.

Staff retirement benefits

Defined benefit plan (Gratuity Fund)

The Company has a gratuity scheme for all its permanent employees who attain the minimum
qualification period for entitlement to gratuity. The Gratuity Fund is maintained by a trust created and
duly approved. Contributions to the fund are made based on actuarial recommendations. The most
recent actuarial valuation was carried out at June 30, 2016 using the projected unit credit method
(refer note 35). The remeasurement gains/losses as per actuarial valuation done at financial year end
are recognized immediately in other comprehensive income and all other expenses are recognized
in accordance with IAS 19 “Employee Benefits” in the profit and loss account.
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4.21
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Defined contribution plan (Provident Fund)

The Company contributes to an approved contributory provident fund scheme for all its permanent
employees. Equal monthly contributions, both by the Company and the employees are made to the
fund, at the rate of 10% of the basic salary plus cost of living allowance. Obligation for contributions
to defined contribution plan by the Company is recognized as an expense in the profit and loss
account.

Compensated absences

The Company accounts for compensated absences on the basis of earned unavailed leaves
accumulated up to three years balance of each employee at the balance sheet date.

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises of the fair value of the consideration received or receivable from the sale of
goods and services in the ordinary course of the Company’s activities. Revenue from sale of goods
is shown net of sales tax and sales discounts, if any.

Revenue is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transactions
will flow to the Company and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably. The revenue arising
from different activities of the Company is recognized on the following basis:

- Sale of goods are recorded when the risks and rewards are transferred, that is, on dispatch of
goods to customers.

- Scrap sales are recognized on delivery to customers at realized amounts.

- Return on deposit is accrued on time proportion basis by reference to the principle outstanding
and the applicable rate of return.

- Commission on insurance premium is recognized on accrual basis.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash, cheques in hand and balances with banks. Short-term
borrowing facilities which are payable on demand and form an integral part of the Company’s cash
management are included as part of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of statement of cash
flows.

Share capital

Share capital is classified as equity and recognized at the face value. Incidental costs, net of tax,
directly attributable to the issue of new shares are shown as a deduction in equity.

Earnings per share

The Company presents earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated
by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year. Diluted EPS is determined by
adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

Dividend and appropriation to reserves

Dividend is recognized as a liability in the period in which it is declared. Appropriations to reserves
are recognized in the year in which these are approved by the Company’s shareholders at the Annual
General Meeting.
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4.24

4.25

Related party transactions

Transactions with related parties are based at arm’s length at normal commercial rates on the same
terms and conditions as applicable to third party transactions.

Segment reporting

An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from
which it may earn revenues and incur expenses including revenues and expenses that relate to
transactions with any of the Company’s other components. The Company has only one reportable
segment.

Significant accounting judgments and critical accounting estimates / assumptions

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards requires
the management to:-

- exercise its judgment in process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, and
- use of certain critical accounting estimates and assumptions concerning the future.

The management has exercised judgment in applying the Company’s accounting policies for
classification of Post Employment Benefits as Defined Benefits Plan and Defined Contribution Plan
(refer note 4.17 and note 35) that have the most significant effects on the amounts recognized in the
financial statements.

The areas involving critical accounting estimates and significant assumptions concerning the future
are discussed below:-

Income taxes

The Company takes into account relevant provisions of the prevailing income tax laws while providing
for current and deferred taxes as explained in note 4.7 of these financial statements.

Defined benefits plan

Certain actuarial assumptions have been adopted as disclosed in note 35 to these financial
statements for valuation of present value of defined benefit obligation and fair value of plan assets.
Any changes in these assumptions in future years might affect actuarial gains / losses recognized
in those years with corresponding effect on carrying amount of defined benefit plan liability / asset.

Property, plant and equipment

Management has made estimates of residual values, useful lives and recoverable amounts of certain
items of property, plant and equipment. Any change in these estimates in future years might affect
the carrying amounts of the respective items of property, plant and equipment with corresponding
effect on the depreciation charge and impairment loss.

Stores and spares

Management has made estimates for realizable amount of slow moving and obsolete stores and
spares items to determine provision for slow moving and obsolete items. Any future change in the
estimated realizable amounts might affect carrying amount of stores and spares with corresponding
affect on amounts recognized in profit and loss account as provision / reversal.
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5.1
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5.3

5.4

OPERATING FIXED ASSETS

The following is the statement of operating fixed assets:

- Freehold | Buildings on Lleasehold Plant‘and Furniture . Electrical
Description land freehold land improve- | machinery and fixtures Vehicles anq other | Computers Total
ments (note 5.2) equipments
(Rupees in thousands)
Year ended June 30, 2016
Net carrying value basis
Opening net book value (NBV) 281,529 1,195,647 - 6,009,196 4,256 81,687 10,350 19,766 7,602,231
Additions (at cost) 803,222 - 2,459,241 1,806 37,539 7,003 6,282 3,315,093
Disposals (NBV) - - - - (3,616) - (46) (3,662)
Depreciation charge (52,588) (791,038) (896)  (17,934) (4,101) (9,391) (875,948)
Closing net book value (refer note 5.1) 281,529 1,946,181 - 7,677,399 5,166 97,576 13,252 16,611 10,037,714
Gross carrying value basis
Cost 281,529 2,388,122 6,995 15,350,605 20,374 148,507 35,663 91,171 18,322,966
Accumulated depreciation / impairment (441,941)  (6,995)  (7,673,200) (15,208) (50,931)  (22,411)  (74,560) (8,285,252)
Net book value 281,529 1,946,181 - 7,677,399 5,166 97,576 13,252 16,611 10,037,714
Year ended June 30, 2015
Net carrying value basis
Opening net book value (NBV) 280,092 1,209,159 6,542,963 4,640 65,492 11,246 24,154 8,137,746
Additions (at cost) 1,437 34,810 294,883 474 36,565 3,410 5,265 376,844
Disposals (NBV) - (770) (5,724) - (6,494)
Depreciation charge - (48,422) (827,880) (858) (14,746) (4,306) (9,653) (905,865)
Closing net book value (refer note 5.1) 281,529 1,195,547 6,009,196 4,256 81,687 10,350 19,766 7,602,231
Gross carrying value basis
Cost 281,529 1,584,900 6,995 12,891,414 18,569 122,985 29,007 91,705 15,027,104
Accumulated depreciation / impairment - (389,353)  (6,995) (6,882,218) (14,313) (41,398) (18,657) (71,939)  (7,424,873)
Net book value 281,529 1,195,547 6,009,196 4,256 81,587 10,350 19,766 7,602,231
Depreciation rate % per annum - 251010 20 51020 10to 20 20 1010 33 2010 33

The cost of fully depreciated assets which are still in use as at June 30, 2016 is Rs. 2,826 million
and written down value is Rs. 3.02 million (2015: Rs. 2,109 million and written down value is Rs.
2.96 million).

Plant and machinery includes gas pipeline installations with a cost of Rs. 16.87 million (written down
value: Nil) [2015: Rs. 16.87 million (written down value: Nil)] which have been installed outside the
premises of the factory and which are under the possession and control of the Sui Northern Gas
Pipelines Limited. However, the economic benefits associated with these assets are flowing to the
Company.

Plant and machinery includes capital spares amounting to Rs. 286.43 million (written down value Rs.
201.35 million) [2015: Rs. 229.59 million (written down value Rs. 161.34 million)].

2016 2015

Note (Rupees in thousands)

The depreciation charge for the year has been allocated as follows:
Cost of sales 27 841,071 874,121
General and administrative expenses 28 32,935 30,160
Selling and distribution expenses 29 1,942 1,581
875,948 905,862
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5.5

5.6.1

55.2

The following operating fixed assets were disposed off during the year:

Accumulated| Net book |  Sale
Description Cost . Mode of disposal Particulars of buyers
depreciation | value | proceeds
(Rupees in thousands)
Plant and machinery
Items having book value upto Rs. fifty thousand 50 50 Scrap (Note 5.5.1) Various
50 50
Vehicles
Suzuki Mehran 529 370 159 203 Maturity of Company Car Scheme (5.5.2) Mr. Farooq Qureshi
Suzuki Cultus 868 608 260 312 Maturity of Company Car Scheme (6.5.2) Mr. Abid Ali
Suzuki Cultus 868 608 260 312 Maturity of Company Car Scheme (5.5.2) Mr. Nadeem Daniel
Suzuki Cultus 868 608 260 312 Maturity of Company Car Scheme (5.5.2) Mr. Asghar Ali
Toyota Corolla Xi 943 660 283 527  Sale (Negotiation) Mr. Laeeq Ahmed
Honda City i-Vtec 1,270 889 381 416 Maturity of Company Car Scheme (5.5.2) M. Irfan Farooqui
Toyota Corolla Xli 1,300 910 390 426 Maturity of Company Car Scheme (5.5.2) Mr. Muhammad Rashid Dastagir
Toyota Corolla Gli 1,414 990 424 512 Maturity of Company Car Scheme (5.5.2) Mr. Mansoor Ahmed
Honda Civic i-Vtec 1,673 1,171 502 548  Maturity of Company Car Scheme (5.5.2) Mr. Tanveer Ahmed Khalid
Toyota Corolla Altis 1,790 1,253 537 644 Maturity of Company Car Scheme (5.5.2) Mr. Karamat Ullah Khan Niazi
Items Having Book Value Upto Rs. Fifty Thousand 493 334 159 190 Scrap (Note 5.5.1) Various
12,016 8,401 3,615 4,402
Electrical and other equipments
Items having book value upto Rs. fifty thousand 348 348 53  Scrap (Note 5.5.1) Various
Computers
Items having book value upto Rs. fifty thousand 6,817 6,771 46 88  Scrap (Note 5.5.1) Various
Total - 2016 19,231 15,570 3,661 4,543
Total - 2015 155,109 148,615 6,493 8,281

Certain assets were retired during the year and sold as bulk scrap. Consequently, it is not practicable
to assign sale proceeds to these retired assets individually.

The vehicles were transferred to employees at maturity of the Company car scheme.

CAPITAL WORK-IN-PROGRESS

This comprises of:
Civil works
Plant and machinery
Advances to suppliers

Project (Coal Based Co-Generation Power Plant)

Civil works
Plant and machinery
Advances to suppliers

Other directly attributable cost

2016
Note

2015

(Rupees in thousands)

21,963 120,534
7,597 113,962
19,477 4,623
49,037 239,019
- 206,681

- 1,208,808

- 49,406

- 108,263

- 1,673,158
49,037 1,812,177
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6.1 Movement of carrying amount

Building Plant and Total
Note machinery
(Rupees in thousands)

Year ended June 30, 2016

Opening balance 327,215 1,484,962 1,812,177
Additions (at cost) 6.2 497,969 942,556 1,440,525
Transferred to operating fixed assets 6.3 (803,222) (2,400,443) (3,203,665)
Closing balance 21,962 27,075 49,037
Year ended June 30, 2015

Opening balance 17,852 184,673 202,525
Additions (at cost) 6.2 345,222 1,560,395 1,905,617
Transferred to operating fixed assets (85,859) (260,106) (295,965)
Closing balance 327,215 1,484,962 1,812,177

6.2 This includes borrowing costs capitalized amounting to Rs. 150.714 million (2015: Rs. 67.785 million)
at an average rate of 7.33% (2015: 9.34 %) per annum.

6.3 This includes amount transferred to Operating fixed assets relating to Coal Fired Co-generation
Power Plant (COGEN-3) and Secondary Waste Water Treatment Plant amounting to Rs. 2,932

7.1

8.1

8.2

million and Rs. 243 million respectively.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Intangible assets
Net carrying value basis

Opening net book value
Additions (at cost)
Amortization charge
Closing net book value

Gross carrying value basis
Cost
Accumulated amortization
Net book value

Amortization rate % per annum

LONG-TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES
(Unsecured - considered good)
Long-term loans
Long-term advance to supplier

Long-term loans

Due from employees
Current portion shown under current assets

Outstanding period is as under:

More than one year but less than three years

2016 2015
Note (Rupees in thousands)
2,390 3,645
3,645 2,712
- 2,542
28 (1,255) (1,609)
2,390 3,645
62,013 62,013
(59,623) (58,368)
2,390 3,645
20 - 33.33 20 -338.33
8.1 184 668
8.5 698 4,386
882 5,054
8.4 690 1,637
12 (506) (969)
8.3 184 668
184 668
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8.3 Chief Executive Officer and Directors have not taken any loans and advances from the Company.

8.4 These loans are granted to employees of the Company principally for purchase of motor vehicles
which do not carry mark-up in accordance with their terms of employment.

8.5 This represents advances to suppliers against fixed assets in the normal course of business and
does not carry any interest or mark-up.

2016 2015
Note (Rupees in thousands)
9 STORES AND SPARES

Stores 9.1 723,838 667,393
Spares

in hand 398,730 421,187

in transit 42,839 19,618

441,569 440,805

1,165,407 1,108,198

Provision for slow moving stores and spares 9.2 (28,810) (25,725)

9.3 1,136,597 1,082,473

9.1 This includes fuel for power and steam generation amounting to Rs. 118.07 million (2015: Rs. 55.82
million).
2016 2015
Note (Rupees in thousands)
9.2 Provision for slow moving stores and spares comprises:

Balance at the beginning of the year 25,725 31,932
Provision / (reversal) recognized during the year 27 3,085 (2,954)
Written off during the year - (3,253)
Balance at the end of the year 28,810 25,725

9.3 Stores and spares also include items which may result in capital expenditure but are not distinguishable
at the time of purchase. However, the stores and spares consumption resulting in capital expenditure
are capitalized in cost of respective assets.

2016 2015
Note (Rupees in thousands)
10 STOCK-IN-TRADE

Raw materials

in hand 1,085,198 1,328,750
in transit 217,260 243,803
1,302,458 1,572,553

Work-in-process 50,053 298,416
Finished goods 379,353 111,365

1,731,864 1,982,334

11 TRADE DEBTS

(Unsecured - considered good)
Due from associated undertakings 111 119,051 67,765
Others 1,146,381 1,105,859
1,265,432 1,173,624

11.1  This comprises of amounts receivable from:

Merit Packaging Limited 73,208 35,950
Colgate-Palmolive (Pakistan) Limited 45,843 29,904
Tetley Clover (Private) Limited - 1,911

119,051 67,765
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11.2

12

121

12.2

12.3

13

13.1

2016 2015
Note (Rupees in thousands)
The aging of related party balances at the balance sheet
date is as follows:

Not past due 112,717 64,797
Past due by 1 to 30 days 6,334 841
Past due by 31 to 60 days - 929
Past due by over 60 days - 1,198

1.3 119,051 67,765

The maximum amount due from related parties at the end of any month during the year was Rs.
209.70 million (2015: Rs. 199.96 million).

These are in the normal course of business and interest free.

2016 2015
Note (Rupees in thousands)
LOANS AND ADVANCES
(Unsecured - considered good)
Loans
Current portion of long-term loans 8.1 506 969
Advances
to employees 12.1 1,844 865
to suppliers 12.2 12,849 14,322
14,693 15,187
12.3 15,199 16,156

This includes advances provided to employees to meet business expenses and are settled as and
when the expenses are incurred. These advances do not carry any interest or mark-up.

This represents advances to suppliers in the normal course of business and does not carry any
interest or mark-up.

Chief Executive Officer and Directors have not taken any loans and advances from the Company.
2016 2015

Note (Rupees in thousands)
TRADE DEPOSITS AND SHORT TERM PREPAYMENTS

Deposits 138.1 80 70
Prepayments 79,453 3,609
79,533 3,679

This represents short-term deposits in the normal course of business and does not carry any interest
or mark-up.
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15

15.1

15.2

16

16.1

2016 2015
Note (Rupees in thousands)
OTHER RECEIVABLES

(Unsecured - considered good)
Due from associated undertakings

Insurance agency commission 836 1,214
Others 3,174 114
14.1 4,010 1,328

Others 326 1,487
4,336 2,815

This comprises of amounts receivable from:

Century Insurance Company Limited 1,523 1,214
Merit Packaging Limited 1,419 107
SIZA (Private) Limited 649 -
Accuray Surgical (Private) Limited 60 -
Anchor Commodities (Private) Limited 55 -
GAM Corporation (Private) Limited 55 -
Cyber Internet Service (Private) Limited 21 7
Sybrid (Private) Limited 228 -

4,010 1,328
TAXATION - NET

The income tax assessments of the Company have been finalized upto Tax Year 2015 (accounting
year ended June 30, 2015). However, the return for the Tax Year 2014 has been selected for audit
under Section 177 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 pending assessment order. Adequate
provisions have been made in these financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2016 (Tax year
2016).

Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue has made certain disallowances for expenses for the Tax
Year 2009, 2011, 2012 and 2015 which resulted in reduction of tax losses available to the Company
for respective years. The Company has filed appeals against orders of the Deputy Commissioner,
Inland Revenue for the Tax Year 2009, 2011 and 2012 before Income Tax Appellate Tribunal and
filed appeal against order of the Deputy Commissioner, Inland Revenue for the Tax Year 2015 before
Commissioner (Appeals), which are pending adjudication.

2016 2015
Note (Rupees in thousands)
CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash at bank in current account 16.1 134,462 117,166
Cheques in hand 79,174 -
Cash in hand 3,858 3,821

217,494 120,987

Cash at bank in current account does not carry any interest or mark-up.
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17 ORDINARY SHARES

Number of ordinary

shares of Rs. 10/- each 2016 2015
2016 2015 (Rupees in thousands)
77,678,857 77,678,857 Fully paid in cash 776,790 776,790
43,542,501 43,542,501 Issued as fully paid bonus shares 435,425 435,425
25,089,437 25,089,437 Issued due to conversion of preference
shares 250,894 250,894
707,550 707,550 Issued under scheme of amalgamation 7,075 7,075
147,018,345 147,018,345 1,470,184 1,470,184

Shares held by associated companies
100,229,748 100,229,748 and related parties 1,002,297 1,002,297

18 PREFERENCE SHARES
Number of ordinary
shares of Rs. 10/- each
2016 2015
300,404,561 300,404,561 Fully paid in cash 3,004,046 3,004,046
(135,182,070) (135,182,070) Redeemed through cash / right shares  (1,351,821) (1,351,821)

(75,101,140)  (75,101,140) Conversion to ordinary shares (751,011) (751,011)

90,121,351 90,121,351 901,214 901,214

90,121,351 90,121,351 Shares held by associated companies 901,214 901,214

18.1  In November 2009, the Company issued preference right shares of the face value of Rs. 10 each, in
the proportion of 4.25 preference shares for every ordinary share held. These shares are not listed
on any of the stock exchanges in Pakistan.

18.2  The followings are the terms, conditions, rights and privileges of preference shares with amendments
which became effective on July 01, 2013.

a) Annual dividends will be payable when and if declared by the Company but shall be paid on
cumulative basis prior to any dividend or other distribution payable to the ordinary shareholders. The
dividend rate will be based on six months KIBOR plus spread of 1% per annum subject to cap of
13% per annum on the face value of the preference shares. The cumulative dividend in arrear as at
the balance sheet date amounted to Rs. 664.16 million (June 30, 2015: Rs. 600.26 million).

b) The preference shareholders do not have any voting rights and are not entitled to receive any notice
for meeting of shareholders and will not be entitled to any rights in respect of subscription of further
issue of ordinary shares of the Company.
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19

19.1

19.2

19.3

19.4

20

The Company shall have the option to redeem the preference shares in full or in any proportion by
giving fourteen days notice. The redemption will be subject to the payment of cumulative unpaid
dividend, if any, on the part being redeemed up to the applicable date of redemption notice. The
redemption will be subject to compliance with the provisions of Section 85 of the Companies
Ordinance, 1984.

2016 2015
Note (Rupees in thousands)
RESERVES
Capital
Share premium 19.1 1,822,122 1,822,122
Capital redemption reserve 19.2 931,254 931,254
Merger reserve 19.3 7,925 7,925
2,761,301 2,761,301
Revenue
General reserve 313,226 313,226
Un-appropriated profit 404,641 72,821

717,867 386,047
3,479,168 3,147,348

This reserve can be utilized by the Company only for the purposes specified in Section 83(2) of the
Companies Ordinance, 1984.

This represents reserve created for the purpose of redemption of preference shares through cash to
comply with Section 85(c) of the Companies Ordinance, 1984.

This represents amount created under scheme of arrangement for amalgamation of former Century
Power Generation Limited, a subsidiary, with the Company.

Movement of reserves have been reflected in the statement of changes in equity.

2016 2015
Note (Rupees in thousands)
LONG-TERM FINANCING

From banking companies - secured
Utilized under mark-up arrangements financed by:
Consortium of Banks

Musharaka 20.1 900,000 1,200,000
Syndicated 20.2 1,350,000 898,000
2,250,000 2,098,000

Term Loans
Allied Bank Limited 20.3 825,000 1,125,000
Meezan Bank Limited - Musharaka 20.4 675,000 452,000
Faysal Bank Limited - 1 20.5 - 10,833
Faysal Bank Limited - 2 20.6 74,238 84,844
1,574,238 1,672,677
3,824,238 3,770,677
From associated undertaking - unsecured 20.7 _ 1,000,000 1,000,000
4,824,238 4,770,677
Less: Current portion shown under current liabilities (946,172) (621,439)

3,878,066 4,149,238
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20.1

20.2

20.3

20.4

20.5

20.6

This represents Diminishing Musharaka Arrangement with a Consortium of Meezan Bank Limited
and Al Baraka Bank (Pakistan) Limited amounting to Rs. 1,500 million. The tenor of the facility is six
years. This finance facility is repayable in twenty equal quarterly installments which commenced from
August 2014.

The finance facility is secured by way of mortgage of immovable properties of the Company and pari
passu hypothecation charge over the assets pertaining to Board Machine (PM-7) with 25% margin.

The rate of mark-up is equal to base rate plus 0.9%. Base rate is equal to three months KIBOR of the
last one business day prior to the beginning of each installment period. During the year the effective
mark-up rate was 7.54 % (June 30, 2015: 10.24%) per annum.

This represents drawdowns of Rs. 1,350 million against Syndicated Term Financing arrangement
with Consortium of MCB Bank Limited and Allied Bank Limited amounting to Rs. 1,500 million to
finance expenditure incurred on 18 MW Coal Based Co-Generation Power Plant. The tenor of the
facility is seven years with two years grace period. This finance facility is repayable in twenty equal
quarterly installments commencing from November 2016.

The finance facility is secured by way of mortgage of immovable properties of the Company and
ranking hypothecation charge over all assets belonging to the Company with 25% margin.

The rate of mark-up is equal to base rate plus 0.75%. Base rate is equal to three months KIBOR
of the last one business day prior to the beginning of each installment period. During the year, the
effective mark-up rate was 7.35% (June 30, 2015: 9.32%) per annum.

This term finance facility has been obtained from Allied Bank Limited amounting to Rs. 1,500
million. The tenor of the facility is six years. This finance facility is repayable in twenty equal quarterly
installments which commenced from June 2014.

The finance facility is secured by way of mortgage of immovable properties of the Company and pari
passu hypothecation charge over the assets pertaining to Board Machine (PM-7) with 25% margin.

The rate of mark-up is equal to base rate plus 0.9%. Base rate is equal to average of three months
KIBOR of the last six business days prior to the beginning of each installment period. During the year,
the effective mark-up rate was 7.48% (June 30, 2015: 10.20%) per annum.

This represents drawdowns of Rs. 675 million against Diminishing Musharaka Arrangement of Rs.
750 million with Meezan Bank Limited to finance expenditure incurred on 18 MW Coal Based Co-
Generation Power Plant. The tenor of the facility is seven years with two years grace period. This
finance facility is repayable in twenty equal quarterly installments commencing from November 2016.

The finance facility is secured by way of mortgage of immovable properties of the Company and
ranking hypothecation charge over all assets belonging to the Company with 25% margin.

The rate of mark-up is equal to base rate plus 0.75%. Base rate is equal to three months KIBOR
of the last one business day prior to the beginning of each installment period. During the year, the
effective mark-up rate was 7.35% (June 30, 2015: 9.32%) per annum.

This term finance facility has been fully repaid during the year. During the year, the effective mark-up
rate for the year was 9.32% per annum (June 30, 2015: 11.29%).

This term finance facility has been obtained from Faysal Bank Limited under Diminishing Musharaka
Arrangement specifically for acquisition of Compact Sheeter. The tenor of the facility is three years
including one year grace period. This finance facility is repayable in eight equal quarterly instalments
which commenced from May 2016.
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21.1

21.2

22

This finance facility is secured by way of exclusive charge on Compact Sheeter with 25% margin.

The rate of mark-up is equal to base rate plus 0.75%. Base rate is equal to three months KIBOR
of the last one business day prior to the beginning of each installment period. During the year, the
effective mark-up rate was 7.23% (June 30, 2015: 9.28%) per annum.

This loan has been obtained from SIZA Commodities (Private) Limited, an associated company,
amounting to Rs. 1,000 million. The loan has been rescheduled during the year on June 30, 2016
and is now repayable after two years from the date of agreement i.e. July 2018.

The rate of mark-up is 0.9% over average of three months KIBOR of the last one day of preceding
quarter. During the year, the effective mark-up rate was 7.51 % (June 30, 2015: 10.39%) per annum.

2016 2015
Note (Rupees in thousands)
DEFERRED TAXATION
Deferred taxation 21.1 695,234 578,499

The net balance for deferred taxation is in respect of following temporary differences:

Deferred tax liabilities

Accelerated tax depreciation allowance 1,606,182 1,430,331
Deferred tax assets

Tax losses carried forward 545,121 495,300

Turnover tax / Alternative Corporate tax 326,406 326,408

Provision for slow moving stores and spares 8,643 7,717

Provision for compensated absences 15,780 -

Others 14,998 22,407
(910,948) (851,832)
695,234 578,499

The Company has not recognized deferred tax assets on tax credit of Rs. 192.48 million which is
available for adjustment against two subsequent years’ tax charge, on the basis of the stated policy
of the Company.

2016 2015
Note (Rupees in thousands)
TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Creditors 221 510,181 302,422
Foreign bills payable 125,058 196,302
Accrued liabilities 22.2 510,220 403,220
Retention money payable 204,136 126,605
Customers’ balances 89,877 60,898
Gratuity payable 35.4 49,992 74,690
Workers’ Profit Participation Fund 22.3 23,437 -
Sales tax payable - net 10,172 37,947
Workers’ Welfare Fund 8,906 -
Provident fund payable 6,182 5,490
Unclaimed dividend 724 724
Other liabilities 42,053 37,066

1,580,938 1,245,364
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24.2

24.3

24.4

The aggregate amount of the outstanding balance of associated undertakings as at June 30, 2016
is Rs. 89.42 million (2015: Rs. 1.63 million).

This includes an amount of Rs. 399.20 million (2015: Rs. 207.67 million) payable in respect of Gas
Infrastructure Development Cess (GIDC) levied under GIDC Act, 2015. The Sindh High Court has
granted stay order against collecting GIDC under the Act pending the final decision on the writ petition
filed by the Company. However, the Company has recorded a provision in the financial statements
against GIDC as liability for the period from August 2014 to February 2016 and no GIDC was levied
by the Sui Northern Gas Pipeline Limited (SNGPL) for the period from March 2016 to June 2016.

2016 2015
Note (Rupees in thousands)

Workers’ Profit Participation Fund

Balance at July 01 - 49,087
Interest on funds utilized in Company’s business 32 - 2,454
Allocation for the year 30 23,437 -
23,437 51,541
Amount paid during the year - (51,541)
Balance at June 30 23,437 -
INTEREST AND MARK-UP ACCRUED
Interest and mark-up accrued on:
Long-term financing 27,722 28,769
Short-term borrowings 13,608 13,630
41,330 42,399
SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS
From banking companies - secured
Running finances 241 1,517,866 1,390,563
Import credit finances 24.2 470,577 561,380

24.3 _ 1,988,443 1,951,943

The Company has available aggregate short-term running finance facilities amounting to Rs. 2,860
million (June 30, 2015: Rs. 2,860 million). Mark-up rates are linked with KIBOR from one to three
months plus spreads ranging from 0.30% to 1.50% per annum (2015: from 0.70% to 1.50% per
annum).

The Company has available aggregate sub-limits for FE loans under facilities for running finance and
letters of credit amounting to Rs. 2,830 million (2015: Rs. 2,830 million). The FE loan of USD 4.49
million has been utilized at year end. This facility is priced at one month and three months LIBOR
plus spread ranging between 1.75% to 3.23% per annum (2015: from 2.00% to 2.80% per annum).

These arrangements are secured by way of pari passu hypothecation charge created on stock-in-
trade, stores and spares and trade debts of the Company.

Additional facilities for opening of letters of credit and guarantees amounting to Rs. 4,046 million
(2015: Rs. 4,031 million) are available to the Company.
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25.1

25.2

25.2.1

26

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
Contingencies
Guarantees

Guarantees have been issued by banks on behalf of the Company in the normal course of business
aggregating to Rs. 447 million (2015: Rs. 367 million).

Sales tax

Three cases of inadmissible input sale tax amounting to Rs. 82.27 million have been adjudicated
against the Company by Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue. The appeals were filed by the
Company against these orders at respective forum. These cases have been remanded back to the
adjudicating authorities by the Appellate Authorities with the direction to verify the compliance of the
Company with the relevant provisions of the Sales Tax Act, 1990. No provision has been made in
these financial statements as the management is of the opinion, based on advice of tax advisor, that
the decision is likely to be in the favor of the Company.

Gas Infrastructure Development Cess

Sui Northern Gas Pipeline Limited has charged an amount of Rs. 70.83 million on account of late
payment surcharge on GIDC of Rs. 399.20 million (Note 22.2) payable in respect of Gas Infrastructure
Development Cess (GIDC) levied under GIDC Act, 2015. The Sindh High Court has granted stay
order against collecting GIDC under the Act pending the final decision on the writ petition filed by
the Company. No provision has been made in these financial statements for late payment surcharge
as the management is of the opinion, based on advice of legal advisor, that stay has been granted
by Sindh High Court against collecting GIDC under the Act, therefore, the Company is not liable to
pay late payment surcharge and expects that the decision is likely to be in the favor of the Company.

Commitments
The Company’s commitments as at balance sheet date are as follows:

a) Letters of credit other than for capital expenditure at the end of the year amounted to Rs. 702.52
million (2015: Rs. 559.39 million).

b) Capital expenditure including letters of credit amounting to Rs. 112.70 million (2015: Rs. 562.69
million).

2016 2015
Note (Rupees in thousands)
SALES
Gross sales 15,602,566 15,391,250
Sales tax (2,213,436)  (2,205,068)

13,389,130 13,186,182
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COST OF SALES

Materials consumed

Fuel and power

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
Salaries, wages and other benefits

Repairs, maintenance and stores consumption
Packing expenses

Insurance

Provision / (reversal) for slow moving stores and spares
Rent, rates and taxes

Manufacturing cost

Work-in-process
Opening stock
Closing stock

Cost of goods manufactured
Finished goods

Opening stock
Closing stock

Salaries, wages and other benefits includes Rs. 43.19 million (2015: Rs. 38.86 million) in respect of

staff retirement benefits.

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries and other benefits
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
Information technology

Rent, rates and taxes
Amortization on intangible assets
Security service charges

Repairs and maintenance
Travelling and conveyance
Electricity

Printing, stationery and periodicals
Business promotion expenses
Fee and subscription

Telephone and postage

Insurance

Advertisement

Salaries and other benefits include Rs. 14.37 million (2015: Rs. 13.98 million) in respect of staff

retirement benefits.

2016 2015
Note (Rupees in thousands)

7,739,036 7,433,203
1,909,960 2,364,298

5.4 841,071 874,121
271 643,095 571,972
632,805 552,621

299,867 281,757

66,858 67,105
9.2 3,085 (2,954)
5,699 5,372

12,141,476 12,147,495
298,416 439,789
(50,053) (298,416)

248,363 141,373
12,389,839 12,288,868
111,365 130,876

(879,353) (111,365)
(267,988) 19,511
12,121,851 12,308,379

2016 2015
Note (Rupees in thousands)
28.1 214,039 209,653
5.4 32,935 30,160
18,237 21,657
8,861 7,982
71 1,255 1,609
36,990 29,124
21,247 18,724
12,231 9,391
10,651 9,715
6,794 7,464
6,318 4,272
3,813 4,101
3,271 3,369
2,192 1,741
502 83
379,336 359,045
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2016 2015
Note (Rupees in thousands)
29 SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES
Selling expenses
Salaries and other benefits 29.1 42,431 36,380
Insurance 452 321
Electricity 679 830
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 5.4 1,942 1,681
Travelling and conveyance 1,825 1,307
Rent, rate and taxes 1,745 1,665
Telephone and postage 174 205
49,248 42,789
Distribution expenses
Outward freight 64,623 70,260
113,871 113,049

29.1  Salaries and other benefits include Rs. 3.26 million (2015: Rs. 2.88 million) in respect of staff retirement
benefits.

2016 2015
Note (Rupees in thousands)
30 OTHER OPERATING CHARGES

Legal and professional charges

Consultancy fees - 52,221
Others 9,147 11,958
9,147 64,179
Auditors’ remuneration
Statutory audit 880 800
Half yearly review 165 150
Fee for other services 134 123
Reimbursement of expenses 144 133
1,323 1,206
Workers’ Profit Participation Fund 22.3 23,437 -
Workers’ Welfare Fund 22 8,906 -
Net exchange loss 31.1 - 6,437
Others 3,268 2,779
46,081 74,601
31 OTHER INCOME

Income from non-financial assets
Sale of scrap 52,054 51,567
Insurance agency commission from associated company 9,669 11,197
Gain on sale of operating fixed assets - net 882 1,785
Net exchange gain 31.1 955 -
Others 576 3,893
64,136 68,442

31.1  This represents exchange loss or gain related to derivative financial instruments.
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2016 2015
Note (Rupees in thousands)
32 FINANCE COST
Long term financing 172,429 287,356
Long term financing from associated company 75,341 103,959
Short term borrowings 89,100 160,634
Workers’ Profit Participation Fund 22.3 - 2,454
336,870 554,403
Net exchange loss on import credit finances 15,536 18,271
Bank charges and commission 3,345 3,313
355,751 575,987
33 TAXATION
For the year
Current 33.1 - 102,725
Prior 1,291 -
Deferred 112,694 (73,764)
113,985 28,961

33.1  The current year tax charge of Rs. 135.09 million including minimum tax of Rs 133.89 million under
Section 113 of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 has been fully adjusted against tax credit of Rs 327.57
under Section 65B at the rate 10% on the cost of plant and machinery capitalized during the year.
Unadjusted tax credit of Rs. 192.48 million is available for adjustment against two subsequent years’
tax charge.

33.2  Numerical reconciliation between the applicable tax rate and average effective tax rate is as follows:

2016 2015

%age %age
Applicable tax rate 32.00 33.00
Effect of final tax under presumptive tax regime - 1.46
Effect of change in rate of tax - 53.75
Others (5.77) (104.62)
(5.77) (49.41)
Average effective tax rate 26.23 (16.41)

33.3  The applicable income tax rate for subsequent years beyond Tax Year 2017 was reduced to 30%
on account of changes made to Income Tax Ordinance 2001 through Finance Act 2015. Therefore,
deferred tax is computed at the rate of 30% applicable to the period when temporary differences are
expected to be reversed / utilized.
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35

35.1

356.2

EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED

The earnings per share as required under IAS 33 “Earnings per share” is given below:

2016 2015
(Rupees in thousands)

Profit / (loss) for the year 322,391 (205,398)
Less: Dividend attributable to cumulative preference shares (63,896) (72,097)
Profit / (loss) attributable to ordinary shareholders 258,495 (277,495)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (in thousands) 147,018 147,018
Earnings / (loss) per share attributable to ordinary shareholders

(Rupees) 1.76 (1.89)

There is no dilutive effect on the basic earnings per share of the Company.
DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN
General description

The scheme provides for terminal benefits for all its permanent employees who attain the minimum
qualifying period at varying percentages of last drawn basic salary. The percentage depends on the
number of service years with the Company. Annual charge is based on actuarial valuation carried out
as at June 30, 2016 using the Projected Unit Credit Method.

The Company faces the following risks on account of gratuity:

Final salary risk - The risk that the final salary at the time of cessation of service is greater than what the
Company has assumed. Since the benefit is calculated on the final salary, the benefit amount would
also increase proportionately.

Asset volatility - Most assets are invested in risk free investments i.e. Government Bonds / Treasury
Bills. However, investments in equity instruments is subject to adverse fluctuations as a result of
change in the market price.

Discount rate fluctuation - The plan liabilities are calculated using a discount rate set with reference to
corporate bond yields. A decrease in corporate bond yields will increase plan liabilities, although this
will be partially offset by an increase in the value of the current plans’ bond holdings.

Investment risks - The risk of the investment underperforming and not being sufficient to meet the
liabilities. This risk is mitigated by closely monitoring the performance of investments.

Risk of insufficiency of assets - This is managed by making regular contribution to the Fund as advised
by the Actuary.

Principal actuarial assumptions

Following are a few important actuarial assumptions used in the valuation:

2016 2015

%age %age
Discount rate 7.25 9.75
Expected rate of return on plan assets 9.75 13.25
Expected rate of increase in salary 7.25 9.75
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35.5

35.6

35.7

35.8

Reconciliation of balance due to defined benefit plan

Present value of defined benefit obligation
Fair value of plan assets
Closing net liability

Movement of the liability recognized in the balance sheet

Opening net liability

Charge for the year

Remeasurement chargeable to other
comprehensive income

Contribution made during the year

Closing net liability

Fair value of plan assets at year end

Government securities

Term Finance Certificates / Certificates of Investment
Mutual funds / Shares

Cash at banks

Others

Movement in present value of defined benefit obligations

Opening present value of defined benefit obligations
Current service cost for the year

Interest cost for the year

Benefits due but not paid during the year

Benefits paid during the year

Remeasurement loss on obligation

Closing present value of defined benefit obligations

Movement in fair value of plan assets

Opening fair value of plan assets

Expected return on plan assets
Contributions during the year

Benefits paid during the year

Benefits due but not paid during the year
Remeasurement gain / (loss) on plan assets
Closing fair value of plan assets

Charge for the year

Current service cost

Interest cost

Expected return on plan assets
Charge for the year

Note

35.8

35.9

22

2016

2015

(Rupees in thousands)

395,453 338,942
(345,461)  (264,252)
49,992 74,690
74,690 54,543
27,017 24,530
(13,469) 29,351
(38,246) (33,734)
49,992 74,690
256,081 225,016

8,733 1,733
32,307 33,178
50,648 4,928

(2,308) (603)

345,461 064,252
338,942 290,778
21,771 19,627
32,603 37,474

(2,308) (603)

(6,794) (15,298)
11,239 6,964

395,453 338,942
264,252 236,235
24,708 32,571
38,246 33,734
(6,794) (15,298)
(2,308) (603)
27,357 (22,387)
345,461 264,252
21,771 19,627
32,603 37,474
(27,357) (32,571)
27,017 24,530
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35.11

35.12
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36.1

36.2

36.3

2016 2015
Note (Rupees in thousands)

Remeasurement chargeable to other comprehensive income
Remeasurement loss on defined benefit obligation 11,238 6,964
Remeasurement (gain) / loss on plan assets (24,708) 22,387
(18,470) 29,351
Tax impact at 30% (2015: 30%) 4,041 (8,805)
(9,429) 20,546
Sensitivity analysis

The impact of 1% change in following variables on defined benefit obligation is as follows:

Increase in Decrease in
assumption  assumption

Discount rate (26,957) 30,731
Salary increase 31,003 (27,713)
Maturity Profile
Time in year
1 52,877
2 23,043
3 43,028
4 51,182
5-10 243,762
Weighted average duration 7 years
The charge in respect of defined benefit plan for the year ending June 30, 2017 is estimated to be

Rs. 26.01 million.
DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN

The Company has contributory provident fund scheme for benefit of all its permanent employees
under the title of “Century Paper & Board Mills Limited - Employees Contributory Provident Fund”.
The Fund is maintained by the Trustees and all decisions regarding investments and distribution of
income etc. are made by the Trustees independent of the Company.

The Trustees have intimated that the size of the Fund at year end was Rs. 430.78 million (2015: Rs.
385.77 million).

As intimated by the Trustees, the cost of the investments made at year end was Rs. 404.79
million (2015: Rs. 376.25 million) which is equal to 94% of the total fund size. The fair value of the
investments was Rs. 410.10 million (2015: Rs. 385.77 million) at that date. The category wise break-
up of investment as per Section 227 of the Companies Ordinance, 1984 is given below:

2016 2015
Rupees Percentage Rupees  Percentage
in thousand in thousand
Government securities 323,345 79 307,747 80
Listed securities (Mutual funds) 76,483 19 77,743 20
Term Finance Certificates 10,275 2 275 -
410,103 100 385,765 100

According to the Trustees, investments out of provident fund have been made in accordance with
the provisions of Section 227 of Companies Ordinance, 1984 and the rules made there under.
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2016 2015
Note (Rupees in thousands)

37 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

Profit / (loss) before taxation 436,376 (176,437)
Adjustment for non-cash charges and other items:
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 875,948 905,862
Amortization of intangible assets 1,256 1,609
Gain on sale of operating fixed assets (882) (1,785)
Provision for gratuity 27,017 24,530
Provision / (reversal) for slow moving / obsolete
stores and spares 3,085 (2,954)
Workers’ Profit Participation Fund 23,437 -
Finance cost 32 355,751 575,987
Effect of exchange gain 215 -
Working capital changes 37.1 343,487 486,277

2,065,690 1,813,089

37.1  Changes in working capital

Decrease in current assets:

Stores and spares (57,209) (169,063)
Stock-in-trade 250,470 581,079
Trade debts (91,808) (166,871)
Loans and advances 957 6,589
Trade deposits and short-term prepayments (461) (367)
Other receivables (1,521) (827)
Tax refunds due from Government - 18,653
100,428 269,193
Increase in current liabilities:
Trade and other payables 243,059 217,084
343,487 486,277
38 REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES
a) The aggregate amount charged in the financial statements for remuneration, including all benefits to
Chief Executive, Directors and Executives of the Company is as follows:
2016 2015
Chief Director | Executives Total Chief Director | Executives Total
Executive Executive
(Rupees in thousands)
Managerial remuneration 8,237 9,060 118,905 136,202 7,540 9,060 102,996 119,596
House rent 3,707 - 49,915 53,622 3,393 - 43,298 46,691
Bonus 2,002 - 25,040 27,042 1,202 - 14,476 15,678
Staff retirement benefits 2,322 - 21,250 23,572 1,967 - 18,422 20,389
Medical 824 900 11,891 13,615 754 900 10,300 11,954
Utilities - 4,260 299 4,559 - 3,099 220 3,319
Others 8 - 4,517 4,525 8 - 3,860 3,868
Total 17,100 14,220 231,817 263,137 14,864 13,059 193,572 221,495
Number of persons 1 1 108 110 1 1 90 92
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b)

39

Aggregate amount charged in these financial statements in respect of Directors’ fee for attending
Board and Audit Committee meetings amounted to Rs. 200,000 and Rs. 200,000, respectively
(2015: Rs. 200,000) and (2015: Rs. 200,000) respectively. The Directors fees for attending Board
and Audit Committee meetings were paid as prescribed in Articles of Association.

The Chief Executive and certain executives are also provided with cars for business and personal use
in accordance with the Company car scheme.

Remuneration to Non-Executive Director relates to amount paid for part time involvement in the
Company.
TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES

The related parties and associated undertakings comprise group companies, other associated
companies, staff retirement funds, directors and key management personnel. Transactions with

related parties and associated undertakings are as under:

Nature of transaction

Sale of goods, Services and Reimbursement of expenses

Relation with
the Company

2016

2015

Note  (Rupees in thousands)

Merit Packaging Limited Associated 969,840 1,031,132
Colgate Palmolive (Pakistan) Limited Associated 477,140 406,794
Tetley Clover (Private) Limited Associated - 5,162
Century Insurance Company Limited Associated 2,927 2,000
SIZA (Private) Limited Associated 2,470 -
Cyber Internet Services (Private) Limited Associated 135 93
Sybrid (Private) Limited Associated 876 -
Ice Animation (Private) Limited Associated 187 -
Others Associated 170 -
Purchase of goods, Services and Reimbursement of expenses
Century Insurance Company Limited Associated 200,279 124,448
Merit Packaging Limited Associated 34,277 36,663
Lakson Business Solutions Limited Associated 4,146 4,063
Hassanali and Gulbanoo Lakhani Foundation Associated 3,536 4,460
Princeton Travels (Private) Limited Associated 7,905 7,857
SIZA Services (Private) Limited Associated 3,168 2,470
Cyber Internet Services (Private) Limited Associated 1,356 1,128
SIZA (Private) Limited Associated 659 686
SIZA Foods (Private) Limited Associated 116 129
Tetley Clover (Private) Limited Associated 432 316
Colgate Palmolive (Pakistan) Limited Associated a7 386
Clover Pakistan Limited Associated - 17
Express Publications (Private) Limited Associated 192 -
Sybrid (Private) Limited Associated 106 -
Rent and other allied charges
Hassanali and Gulbanoo Lakhani Foundation Associated 5,419 4,679
SIZA (Private) Limited Associated 2,562 2,429
SIZA Commodities (Private) Limited Associated 347 347
Insurance Agency Commission
Century Insurance Company Limited Associated 9,668 11,197
Mark-up Accrued
SIZA Commodities (Private) Limited Associated 75,341 103,959
Others
Contribution to Staff Retirement Benefit Plans Employees Fund 72,618 64,294
Remuneration and other benefits Key Management

Personnel 39.2 263,137 221,495
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2016 2015
(Rupees in thousands)
Year end balances

Receivable from related parties 123,061 69,094
Payable to related parties 145,597 81,813
Long-term financing from associated undertaking 1,000,000 1,000,000

The details of compensation paid to key management personnel are shown under the heading of
“Remuneration of Chief Executive, Directors and Executive (note 38)”. There are no transactions with
key management personnel other than under their terms of employment.

All transactions with related parties have been carried out on commercial terms and conditions.

CAPACITY AND PRODUCTION - TONNES

2016 2015

Annual Annual

capacity Actual capacity Actual

onthree production  on three production

shifts shifts

Paper and paper board
produced (Note: 40.1) 240,000 178,932 240,000 157,646
Paper and paper board conversion 30,000 23,723 30,000 22,081

The Company could not achieve the installed capacity because of forced shutdown of plant due to
gas shortages and market conditions during the year.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

Risk management policies

The Company’s objective in managing risks is the creation and protection of share holders’ value.
Risk is inherent in the Company’s activities, but it is managed through a process of ongoing
identification, measurement and monitoring, subject to risk limits and other controls. The process
of risk management is critical to the Company’s continuing profitability. The Company is exposed to
credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk (which includes interest rate risk and price risk) arising from
the financial instruments it holds.

The Audit Committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Company’s risk
management policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework
in relation to the risks faced by the Company. The Audit Committee is assisted in its oversight role by
Internal Audit. Internal Audit undertakes both regular and adhoc reviews of risk management controls
and procedures, the results of which are reported to the Audit Committee.

The Company finances its operations through equity, borrowings and management of working capital
with a view to maintaining an appropriate mix between various sources of finance to minimize risk.
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for the year ended June 30, 2016

41.2

Credit risk

Credit risk represents the accounting loss that would be recognized at the reporting date if counter
parties fail to perform as contracted and arises principally from trade and other receivables. The
Company’s policy is to enter into financial contracts with reputable counter parties in accordance
with the internal guidelines and regulatory requirements.

Exposure to credit risk

The carrying amounts of the financial assets represent the maximum credit exposures. Out of total
financial assets of Rs. 1,490.86 million (2015: Rs. 1,301.96 million), the financial assets which are
subject to credit risk amounted to Rs. 1,487.01 million (2015: Rs. 1,298.14 million). The carrying
amounts of financial assets exposed to credit risk at reporting date are as under:

2016 2015

(Rupees in thousands)
Loans and deposits 3,599 4,536
Trade debts 1,265,432 1,173,624
Other receivables 4,336 2,815
Bank balances 213,636 117,166

1,487,003 1,298,141

The aging of trade receivable at the reporting date is:

Not past due 800,785 818,659
Past due 1-30 days 374,641 264,592
Past due 30-90 days 79,851 83,188
Past due 90 days 10,155 7,185

1,265,432 1,173,624

To manage exposure to credit risk in respect of trade receivables, management performs credit
reviews taking into account the customer’s financial position, past experience and other factors.
Where considered necessary, advance payments are obtained from certain parties.

The exposure to banks is managed by dealing with variety of major banks and monitoring exposure
limits on continuous basis. The ratings of banks ranges from A to AAA.

Concentration of credit risk

Concentration of credit risk arises when a number of counter parties are engaged in similar business
activities or have similar economic features that would cause their abilities to meet contractual
obligation to be similarly affected by the changes in economic, political or other conditions. The
Company believes that it is not exposed to major concentration of credit risk.

Impaired assets

During the year no assets have been impaired.



Notes to the Financial Statements
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41.3

41.4

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting its financial obligations
as they fall due. The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that
it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stress
conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation.
The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including interest payments, if any:

Carrying | Contractual | Six months 'I?AI/ );Itvoe One to two| Two to five | Over five
amount | Cash Flows | orless months years years years

(Rupees in thousands)

2016
Long-term financing 4,824,238 5,561,131 564,907 675,751 1,286,841 2,930,562 103,070
Trade and other payables 1,296,754 1,296,754 1,296,754 - - - -
Interest and mark-up accrued 41,330 41,330 41,330 - - - -
Short-term borrowings 1,988,443 1,993,670 1,993,670 - - - -
8,150,765 8,892,885 3,896,661 675,751 1,286,841 2,930,562 103,070
2015
Long-term financing 4,770,673 5,739,852 475,185 489,056 1,161,321 3,256,590 357,700
Trade and other payables 989,522 989,522 989,522 - - - -
Interest and mark-up accrued 42,399 42,399 42,399 - -
Short-term borrowings 1,951,943 1,959,337 1,959,337 - - - -
7,754,537 8,731,110 3,466,443 489,056 1,161,321 3,256,590 357,700
Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market price, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and
equity prices will effect the Company’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments.
The Company is not exposed to price risk.

Currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the future cash flow of financial asset or a liability will fluctuate
due to a change in foreign exchange rates. It arises mainly where receivables and payables exist due
to transactions entered into in foreign currencies. The Company’s exposure to foreign currency risk
is as follows:

2016 2015

(Rupees in thousands)
Foreign bills payable 125,058 196,302
Import credit finances 470,577 561,380
Retention money payable 150,984 110,821
Gross balance sheet exposure 746,619 868,503
Outstanding letter of credits 804,811 947,080
Net exposure 1,551,430 1,815,583

The following significant exchange rates have been applied.
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Average rate Reporting date rate
2016 2015 2016 2015
Rupees
USD to PKR 104.43 101.54 104.85 101.83

At reporting date, if the PKR had strengthened by 10% against the US Dollar with all other variables
held constant, post-tax profit for the year would have been higher / lower by the amount shown
below, mainly as a result of net foreign exchange gain on net foreign currency exposure at reporting
date.

Average rate Reporting date rate
2016 2015 2016 2015
(Rupees in thousands)

Effect on profit 104,967 95,408 105,389 95,680

The weakening of the PKR against US Dollar would have had an equal but opposite impact on the
post-tax profit.

The sensitivity analysis prepared is not necessarily indicative of the effects on profit for the year and
assets / liabilities of the Company.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. Majority of the interest rate exposure arises from long-
term loans and short-term borrowings. At the balance sheet date the interest rate profile of the
Company’s interest-bearing financial instruments is as follows:

2016 | 2015 2016 | 2015
Effective rate Carrying amount
(In percent) (Rupees in thousands)
Financial liabilities
Variable rate instruments
Long-term loans 713to7.52 10.39t011.36 4,824,238 4,770,677
Short-term borrowings 5.61 t0 6.59 8.42109.38 _ 1,988,443 1,951,943

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

A change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have increase / (decrease)
profit for the year by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in
particular foreign currency rates, remain constant. The analysis is performed on the same basis for
the prior year.
Profit and loss (post tax)
100 bps 100 bps
increase decrease
(Rupees in thousands)
As at June 30, 2016

Cash flow sensitivity - Variable rate financial liabilities (45,645) 45,645
As at June 30, 2015
Cash flow sensitivity - Variable rate financial liabilities (45,042) 45,042

The sensitivity analysis prepared is not necessarily indicative of the effects on profit for the year and
assets / liabilities of the Company.
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42

2016 2015
(Rupees in thousands)
Financial instruments by category

Financial assets
LLoans and receivables at amortised cost:

Long-term loans and deposits 3,013 3,497
Trade debts 1,265,432 1,173,624
Loans, advances and trade deposits 586 1,039
Other receivables 4,336 2,815
Cash and bank balances 217,494 120,987

1,490,861 1,301,962

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities at amortised cost:

Long-term financing 4,824,238 4,770,677
Trade and other payables 1,296,754 989,522
Interest and mark-up accrued 41,330 42,399
Short-term borrowings 1,988,443 1,951,943

8,150,765 7,754,541

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

Underlying the definition of fair value is the presumption that the Company is a going concern and
there is no intention or requirement to curtail materially the scale of its operations or to undertake a
transaction on adverse terms.

A financial instrument is regarded as quoted in an active market if quoted prices are readily and
regularly available from an exchange dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service or regulatory
agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s
length basis.

IFRS 13 ‘Fair Value Measurement’ requires the Company to classify fair value measurements and fair
value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements of fair
value hierarchy has the following levels:

- Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

- Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset
either directly that is, derived from prices.

- Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data ( that is,
unadjusted) inputs.

Transfer between levels of the fair value hierarchy are recognised at the end of the reporting period
during which the changes have occurred.

The carrying values of all financial assets and liabilities reflected in the financial statements approximate
their fair values.
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44

45

46

47

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Company’s objectives when maintaining capital are to safeguard the entity’s ability to continue
as a going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders through the optimization of the debt and equity balance.

The Company sets the amount of capital it requires in proportion to risk. The Company manages its
capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the
risk characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Company may issue new shares or adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders.

The Company’s management believes in maintaining appropriate mix of debt and equity capital and
monitors capital on the basis of the net debt to equity ratio. The net debt is defined as long and short
term borrowings offset by cash and bank balances. The equity includes ordinary and preference
share capital and all types of reserves that are managed as capital and subordinated loan.

DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE

These financial statements were authorized for issue on August 17, 2016 by the Board of Directors
of the Company.

CORRESPONDING FIGURES

Corresponding figures have been rearranged and reclassified, wherever necessary for the purpose
of comparison and for better presentation. However, no significant reclassification has been made
during the year.

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

The number of employees as at year end was 1,521 (2015: 1,543) and average number of employees
during the year was 1,524 (2015: 1,527).

GENERAL

Amounts have been rounded off to the nearest thousands of rupees.

s Mz,

Aftab Ahmad Tasleemuddin Ahmed Batlay
Chief Executive Officer Director



Pattern of Shareholding

as at June 30, 2016

Incorporation Number K-54/8182 of 1984
CUIN Registration No. 0012021

Number of Sharesholding Total Shares
Shareholders From To Held
474 1 100 10,041
342 101 500 120,221
241 501 1,000 214,631
504 1,001 5,000 1,331,717
141 5,001 10,000 1,101,237
61 10,001 15,000 768,012
50 15,001 20,000 911,803
22 20,001 25,000 514,569
12 25,001 30,000 338,990
12 30,001 35,000 398,383
10 35,001 40,000 385,498
3 40,001 45,000 133,000
16 45,001 50,000 788,493
6 50,001 55,000 312,370
3 55,001 60,000 173,546
2 60,001 65,000 127,091
2 65,001 70,000 138,362
3 75,001 80,000 237,313
2 85,001 90,000 175,750
1 90,001 95,000 93,115
4 95,001 100,000 396,925
1 100,001 105,000 102,500
4 105,001 110,000 433,313
3 120,001 125,000 363,000
1 130,001 135,000 134,500
1 135,001 140,000 138,000
2 150,001 155,000 302,500
1 155,001 160,000 155,500
1 160,001 165,000 161,500
1 170,001 175,000 172,530
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Pattern of Shareholding

as at June 30, 2016

Number of Sharesholding Total Shares
Shareholders From To Held
1 175,001 180,000 177,355
3 190,001 195,000 581,031
4 195,001 200,000 793,342
1 200,001 205,000 204,930
1 210,001 215,000 210,410
2 300,001 305,000 606,540
3 345,001 350,000 1,045,000
2 365,001 370,000 736,402
1 375,001 380,000 377,500
2 550,001 555,000 1,101,000
1 555,001 560,000 557,000
1 600,001 605,000 600,000
1 625,001 630,000 629,495
1 700,001 705,000 700,536
1 820,001 825,000 824,550
1 900,001 905,000 904,500
1 1,005,001 1,010,000 1,005,100
1 1,190,001 1,195,000 1,191,500
1 1,360,001 1,365,000 1,362,825
1 1,795,001 1,800,000 1,798,500
1 1,850,001 1,855,000 1,853,386
1 1,870,001 1,875,000 1,871,050
1 3,250,001 3,255,000 3,253,537
1 3,500,001 3,505,000 3,500,000
1 5,795,001 5,800,000 5,798,500
1 7,040,001 7,045,000 7,044,231
1 12,390,001 12,395,000 12,390,648
1 12,495,001 12,500,000 12,499,634
1 32,610,001 32,615,000 32,614,961
1 40,150,001 40,155,000 40,150,472
1,966 147,018,345




Categories of Shareholding

as at June 30, 2016

| Shareholders’ Category Shares Held | Percentage
Directors, CEO, and their spouses and minor children 62,545 0.04
Associated Companies / undertakings and related parties 100,165,203 68.13
NIT and ICP 7,044,531 4.80
Public Sector Companies and Corporation 3,253,537 2.21
tBis:gs, Development Financial Institutions and Non Banking Financial Institu- 1.047.018 130
Modarabas and Mutual Funds 2,227,455 1.51
Insurance Companies 493,402 0.34
Shareholders holding 10% or more 72,765,433 49.49
General Public 17,038,386 11.59
Others 14,786,268 10.06

Note: Some of the Shareholders are reflected in more than one category.
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Information as required under

Code of Corporate Governance
as at June 30, 2016

, Number of

Shareholders’ Category Shares Held
ASSOCIATED COMPANIES/UNDERTAKINGS AND RELATED PARTIES
SIZA Services (Private) Limited 32,614,961
SIZA (Private) Limited 40,150,472
Premier Fashions (Private) Limited 12,390,648
SIZA Commodities (Private) Limited 12,499,634
Accuray Surgicals Limited 1,853,386
Century Insurance Company Limited 629,495
Sultan Ali Lakhani 1,767
Shaista Sultan Ali Lakhani 303
Babar Ali Lakhani 18,901
Bilal Ali Lakhani 151
Danish Ali Lakhani 2,850
Anushka Zulfigar Lakhani 1,393
Anika Amin Lakhani 1,242
MUTUAL FUNDS
MCBFSL-Trustee JS Value Fund 557,000
CDC-Trustee JS Large Cap Fund 550,500
CDC-Trustee PIML Strategic Multi Asset Fund 30,000
CDC-Trustee JS Pension Savings Fund-Equity Account 152,500
CDC-Trustee PIML Value Equity Fund 32,500
CDC-Trustee Unit Trust of Pakistan 904,500
CDC-Trustee National Investment (UNIT) Trust 7,044,231
M/s. First Capital Mutual 455
DIRECTORS,CEOQO, THEIR SPOUSES AND MINOR CHILDREN
Igbal Ali Lakhani Chairman 2,167
Zulfigar Ali Lakhani Director 948
Amin Mohammed Lakhani Director 1,606
Tasleemuddin A. Batlay Director 3,417
Shahid Ahmed Khan Director 1,724
Aftab Ahmad Director & CEO 4,718
Kemal Shoaib Director 718
Muhammad Imran Rafig Nominee Director (NIT) NIL
Ronak Igbal Lakhani W/o Igbal Ali Lakhani 189
Fatima Lakhani W/o Zulfigar Ali Lakhani 189
Saira Amin Lakhani W/o Amin Mohammed Lakhani 189
Roohi Aftab W/o Aftab Ahmad 46,680
EXECUTIVE 20
PUBLIC SECTOR COMPANIES AND CORPORATIONS 3,253,537
BANKS, DEVELOPMENT FINANCE INSTITUTIONS, NON-BANKING FINANCE COMPANIES,
INSURANCE COMPANIES, TAKAFUL, MODARABA AND PENSION FUNDS 3,140,956
SHAREHOLDERS HOLDING 5% OR MORE VOTING RIGHTS IN THE COMPANY
SIZA (Private) Limited 40,150,472
SIZA Services (Private) Limited 32,614,961
SIZA Commodities (Private) Limited 12,499,634
Premier Fashions (Private) Limited 12,390,648




Form of Proxy

I/We
of
a member of CENTURY PAPER & BOARD MILLS LIMITED
hereby appoint

of

or failing him/her

of

to act as my/our proxy and to vote for me/us and on my/our behalf at the Annual General Meeting of the
Shareholders of the Company to be held on the 28™ day of September 2016 and at any adjournment thereof.

Signed this day of 2016.
Folio CDC Participant CDC Account/ No. of
No. D No. Sub-Account No. shares held
Signature over
Revenue Stamp
Witness 1 Witness 2
Signature Signature
Name Name
CNIC No. CNIC No.
Address Address

Notes: 1. The Proxy must be a member of the Company.
2. The signature must tally with the specimen signature/s registered with the Company.

3. If a proxy is granted by a member who has deposited his/her shares into Central Depository
Company of Pakistan Limited, the proxy must be accompanied with participant’s ID number
and account/sub-account number along with attested photocopies of Computerized National
Identity Card (CNIC) or the Passport of the beneficial owner. Representatives of corporate
members should bring the usual documents required for such purpose.

4. The instrument of Proxy properly completed should be deposited at the Registered Office of the
Company situated at Lakson Square, Building No. 2, Sarwar Shaheed Road, Karachi not less
than 48 hours before the time of the meeting.



-

-
-

-

L e

2JoH P04

AFFIX
CORRECT
POSTAGE

)]

m

=

=

=

[9p] .

32

=0
TR
o3
<<
wos50
rmgy o
Qe -0
Hoeowm

Lxrwg
2218

<3< d
NG RN
MV.SS|_
Stz
CWOAC

ND=<
cH¥EEEE
FFOJdJwX

aJoH plo

1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
7

"
o Y
P _r
(o) o
T P
O . O
(@] , O
L P

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

"
o Lo
(0] O
T _H
© e
o [N
L [

1

1

1

|

L



((JGU/T/?)ML’JC?

i
JU
sl St undS S A w6 O S
JU
Sl A LSS
JU

el L b s (I Dtk et S Sk i m G F 2T
e SIS LS S st S B T s GRS L S n s T F AR U
e I G,

Jﬁd/lgcb?"’}gjln/g/fﬁ'“ /:?.7'/}"

S SIS S

155,284

vals s

L5 L5

(L' rt’
AKFES T el AKFESF e

S
p'.:'

&

e S At (O SEE (I

ce s Ptnal e B i p i et (SN A

u@u;ggs/K?tﬁdisy’u",;{uﬁé(psLfl{),,uﬁ;ﬂﬂn&mqgmn&%wd;d _F
ce G A ey J L U U U ity Ko e $us 2t S i Pl

$os P OSEIE NG e B0, L1t P T L2 i S (s St o

-
¢












